HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 8, 2008
8:51 a. m

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmittee neeting to
order at 8:51:13 AM

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Ri chard Foster
Representative Les Gara

Representati ve M ke Hawker
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representative Mke Kelly
Representative Bill Thomas, Jr.

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Mary Nel son

ALSO PRESENT

Sharon Kelly, Staff, Co-Chair Chenault; Pete Ecklund, Staff,
Representative Kevin Meyer; Bruce Willace; Mirk Vinsel,
Executive Director, United Fishernmen of Al aska (UFA); Scott
McAl i ster, Marketing Chairman, United Fishernmen of Al aska;
Jim Stone, President, Alaska Scallop Association; Bob
Thor st enson, Juneau

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Shawn Docht ermann, Kodiak Creman’s Association, Anchorage;
Jul i e Kavanaugh, Kodiak; diver Holm Kodiak; John W nther
Pet ersburg; Max Hul se, Eagle River; Dick Trenmaine, Norton
Sound Econom ¢ Devel opnment Corporation; Theresa Peterson,
Kodi ak; Kip Thonet, Kodi ak; Pete Hannan, Kodi ak; Al an Parks,
Homer; Arnie Thonpson, Executive Director, Al aska Crab
Coalition, Executive Menber, United Fisheries of Al aska;
Dawson Hoover, Coastal Village Regions; Thomas G| Martin
Arctic Storm Mko Haggerty, Honer; John Jones, Chiknick
Lagoon

SUMVARY

CSSB 221(FIN) am
"An Act making and anending appropriations
including capital appropriations, supplenenta

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 04/08/08 8:51 A M



appropriations, and appropriations to capitalize
funds; and providing for an effective date.”

CSSB 221(FIN) am was heard and HELD in Committee
for further consideration.

SB 254 "An Act extending the termnation date of the
Al aska regional econom c assistance program and
providing for an effective date."

SB 254 was heard and HELD in Conmittee for further
consi derati on.

SB 259 "An Act repealing certain provisions relating to
applications for nedical assistance coverage;
maki ng certain provisions of ch. 96, SLA 2006,
retroactive; providing for an effective date by
repealing an effective date section in ch. 96, SLA
2006; providing for an effective date for certain
sections of ch. 96, SLA 2006; and providing for an
effective date.”

SB 259 was schedul ed but not heard.

SB 202 "An Act relating to expenditures in aid of or to
i npl enent the provisions of the federal Real 1D
Act."

SB 202 was schedul ed but not heard.
8:52:14 AM

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 221(FIN) am

"An Act making and anmendi ng appropriations, including
capital appropriations, supplenental appropriations,
and appropriations to capitalize funds; and providing
for an effective date."

Vice-Chair Stoltze MOVED to ADOPT HCS CSSB 221(FIN), |abel ed
25- GS2007\V, Kane, 4/7/08 as the working draft before the
commttee. There being NO OBJECTIQN, it was so ordered.

PETE ECKLUND, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE KEVI N MEYER, noted that
all budget itens previously vetoed by the Governor are
included in this section.

Co- Chair Meyer explained how the itenms were ranked. The
primary enphasis in this version of the bill are the
addi ti ons nade by House nenbers.

8:55:32 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/08/08 8:51 A M



Representative Thomas asked how it would be known which
projects were which. M. Ecklund noted the bill was a work
in progress and an explanatory section would be forthcom ng.

8:56:22 AM

SHARON KELLY, STAFF, CO CHAI R CHENAULT, reviewed the
suppl enental operating itens added to the bill. There were
12 itens added: an increnent for the Departnent of Law for
$1.4 million in Section 18; nine itens for the Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities, the majority of which
are requests for increases for fuel, and one decrenent; one
increment for the University of Al aska that totals $927.2
whi ch funds the fuel request for FY 08 at 100 percent; and
in Section 16, intent |anguage was added to say that the
econom c stinmulus rebate checks issued by the federal
governnment during 2008 wll not affect income eligibility
criteria for any state program

Co- Chair Meyer reported that those additions total ed about a
$2 mllion iIncrease.

Vice-Chair Stoltze said it was confusing which districts
each item belongs to. Co-Chair Meyer said that information
woul d be incl uded.

CSSB 221 (FIN) am was heard and HELD in Commttee for
further consideration.

AT- EASE: 8:58: 56 AM

RECONVENED: 9:00:12 AM

SENATE BILL NO. 254

"An Act extending the termnation date of the Al aska
regi onal econom c assi stance program and providing for
an effective date."

Vice-Chair Stoltze MWED to RESCIND the action taken
previously to report HCS SB 254(FIN) out of Committee on
April 6. There being NO OBJECTION, it was so ordered.

9:02:14 AM

BRUCE WALLACE, JUNEAU, testified that the bill would allow
fisheries of |limted size to go forward in a controlled
manner and is critical in limting the size of the by catch.
He testified in support of the bill because of those two

conponent s.

Representative Kelly asked if he was in favor of the
amendnent. M. \Wallace said yes.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/08/08 8:51 A M



9: 05: 09 AM

MARK VI NSEL, EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR, UNI TED FI SHERMAN OF ALASKA
(UFA), testified in support of the anmendnent to extend the
termnation date of the Korean Hair Crab and Wathervane
Scallop fisheries, which have proven to be successful in
staying within by catch limts. He enphasized that it is a
vessel -based comrercial fishery and UFA does not support
that method for any other fishery. Vice-Chair Stoltze asked
if the issue was contentious wthin UFA M. Vinsel
reported that there was w de support.

9:06: 25 AM

SCOTT MCALLI STER, MARKETING CHAIR, UN TED FISHERVAN OF
ALASKA, spoke to the inportance of the sustainability of the
industry. He stated support for the anendnent and w shed to
see the sunset elimnated.

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked if M. MAIlister wanted to see the
program continued permanently. M. MAlister said he
woul d. Vice-Chair Stoltze commented on the inportance of
sustainability.

9:08:51 AM

JI M STONE, PRESI DENT, ALASKA SCALLOP ASSCCI ATI ON, thought at
i ssue was the question of corporate ownership. He read from
testi nony about the positives of fishernen working together
to target quotas and reduce by catch. He pointed out that
the Departnment of Fish and Gane supports the anendnent. He
testified in support of the sunset date being extended in
this bill. He dispelled the msconception about the
i ndustry not paying taxes. He defended the Al aska Scall op
Associ ation. He testified in support of the bill.

Representative  Foster asked who was attacking the
Associ ati on. M. Stone explained that the attack would be
if they would lose the ability to prosecute the fishery in a
responsi bl e manner.

9:11: 30 AM

BOB THORSTENSQON, JUNEAU, testified in support of the bill.
He spoke against extinguishing this limted entry system
He spoke to the 17,500 of Al askans that are a part of the
two fisheries. It is a larger nunber than all other
fisheries conmbined. He said there have been no court cases
regarding the two fisheries since the |egislation was passed
in 2002. He noted all of the court cases related to other
fisheries.

M. Thorstenson discussed the introduction of a conpanion
Senate bill. He maintained that limted entry was the nost

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/08/08 8:51 A M



effective nethod for fisheries. He shared tax revenue
information fromthe fisheries.

Vice-Chair Stoltze asked if other limted entry fisheries
shoul d be aboli shed. M. Thorstenson replied no. Vi ce-
Chair Stoltze thought the corporate entity definition was
m sl eadi ng. M. Thorstenson explained the makeup of the

cor por ati ons.

9:18:16 AM

SHAWN DOCHTERMANN, KOCDI AK CREWAN S ASSOCI ATI ON, KODI AK,
rel ated his experience with fisheries. He testified against

the vessel-based limted entry portion of the bill. He
believed that the bill opens the door for commercial entry
fishery permits to be owned by corporations, instead of by
actual persons. He questioned the nunber of vesse

participants. He spoke of the work on SB 113 to change the
constitution. He testified in opposition to SB 254.

9:20: 34 AM

JULI E KAVANAUGH, KODI AK, spoke to the original intent of the
bill. She maintained that inserting the anmendnent was not
appropriate. The original intent of the bill was to extend

the Alaska Regional Economc Developnent Organizations
(ARDORS) program which is unrelated to the vessel based
permt system She shared the history of the hair crab and
scallop fisheries and the adverse affects this bill would
have. She detailed the negative effects of the bill.

9:25:01 AM

QLI VER HOLM KODI AK, testified against the inclusion of the
amendnment in the bill. He maintained that vessel-based
[imted entry is not needed for conservation reasons. He

commented that this legislation is an attenpt to allow
corporate ownership of fisheries, which he opposes.

9:27:37 AM

MAX HULSE, EAGLE RIVER, testified in support of the
amendnent to SB 221. He shared his famly's experience in
scallop fisheries and requested that permts not be taken
away.

9: 29: 24 AM

JOHN W NTHER, PETERSBURG, related his experience as a hair
crab fisher and his work on the original legislation in
2005. He testified in support of the amendnent and for the
renoval of the sunset cl ause.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/08/08 8:51 A M



Vice-Chair Stoltze asked for comments on the inportance of
sustainability. M. Wnther said he has worked very hard to

get name recognition, limted entry, and sustainable
fisheries in Alaska. Vice-Chair Stoltze asked if this idea
could be carried over to the salnon fishery. M. Wnther

said it could.

9:33: 25 AM

D CK TREMAI NE, NORTON SOUND ECONOM C DEVEL OPMENT
CORPORATI ON, said he represents the Comunity Devel opnent
Quota (CDQ elenent that owns two permts. He expl ai ned
that these are fisheries that occur primarily in federa

waters. He mmintained that the owners are corporate-owned

He advocated for mamintaining the current entry system

Representative Hawker asked for assurance that the CDQ
program benefits the whole state. M. Tremaine replied that
t hey punped dollars and services back to the state.

9:37:17 AM

Representative Hawker asked if the CDQ program is working.
M. Tremaine said that the CDQ programis unique in that it
takes a public resource and subsidizes comunities at no
cost to taxpayers. It is working very well.

9: 38: 30 AM

THERESA PETERSON, KODI AK, testified against the inclusion of
t he | anguage which would allow vessels to own permts. She
t hought it would erode the limted entry systemintent. She
encouraged the vessel owners to work together to figure out
a way to manage the fishery and keep the permits in the
nanmes of the people fishing.

KIP THOMVET, KODI AK, testified against inclusion of the
amendnent in the bill. He wanted permits to be held by
active fishermen and not individuals or entities that could
exploit fishernmen, as the legislation originally intended.

9:43: 30 AM

PETE  HANNAN, KODI AK, testified against including the
amendnent in the bill. He requested nore tinme for public
comment. He maintained that conpetition is healthy for the
i ndustry.

9:44:54 AM

ALAN PARKS, HOMER, voiced concern about the process of
inserting the |anguage in the bill and not allow ng enough
time for public testinony. He testified against the vessel -
based limted entry system He thought all other limted

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/08/08 8:51 A M



entry systemwere in conpliance with the Limted Entry Act.
He spoke to a good record for progressive consuners and the
process of dredging for scall ops.

9:47:45 AM

ARNI E THOMPSQON, EXECUTIVE DI RECTOR, ALASKA CRAB COQALI TI ON
EXECUTI VE MEMBER, UNI TED FISHERIES OF ALASKA, shared the
hi story of crab and scallop closure areas and the limting
of vessel-based licensing. He maintained that the industry
has been sustainable. He agreed with M. Wnther regarding
the need for a vessel-based l|icense program for both crab
and scallop fisheries.

9:52: 07 AM
DAWSON HOOVER, COASTAL VI LLAGE REG ONS, testified in support
of maintaining CDQ prograns. The vessel limtation program
i s wor Ki ng.
9:53:55 AM

THOMAS G L MRTIN, ARCTIC STORM testified against the
amendnent to SB 254. He shared his experience wth owning a
scallop fishery. He related the history of the fisheries.
He suggested going to open access and meking rules to favor
the smal| operators.

9: 56: 59 AM

Representative Gara asked how the current system made the
fishery too expensive to fish. M. Mrtin related how the
observer charges a $20,000 deposit which priced the snall
boat out of business. The observer program did not work
wel | . The state declared that a scallop vessel is a
processor which required additional costs.

9:59:44 AM

MAKO HAGCERTY, HOVER, explained that he is a fornmer
fisherman due to the type of program being proposed. He
urged the Commttee to research the inpact of fishery plans.
He stated opposition to the nmethod the Committee is using
regarding this bill. He testified against the anmendnent.

Representative Thomas asked which fishery he was in. M.
Haggerty said halibut and black cod. Representative Thonmas
agreed wth the problens of fishernmen, based on personal
experi ence.

10: 02: 35 AM

JOHN JONES, CHI KNI CK LAGOON, asked for clarification about
the bill. Vice-Chair Stoltze related that the bill is

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/08/08 8:51 A M



trying to extend an existing permt. M. Jones thought that
corporations should not be allowed to own a permt. He
testified against the amendnent in SB 254.

SB 254 was heard and HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

SENATE BILL NO. 259

"An Act repealing certain provisions relating to
applications for medical assistance coverage; making
certain provisions of ch. 96, SLA 2006, retroactive
providing for an effective date by repealing an
effective date section in ch. 96, SLA 2006; providing
for an effective date for certain sections of ch. 96,
SLA 2006; and providing for an effective date."

SB 259 was schedul ed but not heard.
SENATE BILL NO 202

"An Act relating to expenditures in aid of or to
i npl enent the provisions of the federal Real ID Act."

SB 202 was schedul ed but not heard.
ADJ QURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 10: 05 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/08/08 8:51 A M



